
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA  
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2011       MD2020 
       100152 
TO: CRA/LA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: CHRISTINE ESSEL, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
  
STAFF: BARRON MCCOY, REGIONAL ADMINISTRATOR   
 MICHELLE BANKS-ORDONE, PROJECT MANAGER   
 STEVEN JONES, SENIOR PLANNER   
 
SUBJECT: Midtown Crossing Project Signage Variation. Minor Variations for signage 

from Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Plan’s signage standards to allow five 
(5) signs in excess of 100 square feet each, in lieu of 100 square foot maximum, 
on Midtown Crossing retail development at 4550 West Pico Boulevard in the 
Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Project Area  

 HOLLYWOOD & CENTRAL REGION (CD 10) 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

That the CRA/LA Board of Commissioners take the following actions: 
 
1. Approve five (5) Minor Variations from the requirements of Resolution 6032 adopted 

under Sections 507 and 520 of the Redevelopment Plan for the Mid-City Recovery 
Redevelopment Project Area to individually allow five (5) signs in excess of the 
maximum individual size (100 sf) permitted; and 

 
2. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer or designee to sign off on the sign permit 

application(s) for the above-referenced five (5) signs, subject to confirmation from the 
City of Los Angeles that all of the said five (5) signs, as they are currently-proposed, 
have been approved by all applicable City departments. 

 
 

 
SUMMARY 

CIM Group, the developer of the three level, 383,000 square foot retail development at its 11.3 
acre 4550 West Pico Boulevard site (Attachment A) is proposing five (5) individual on-site signs 
in excess of the 100 square foot individual maximum size allowed by the Mid-City Recovery 
Redevelopment Plan (“Plan”).  The five proposed signs range in size from 264 square feet to 
900 square feet. (See Attachment B.) 
 
A “Resolution Adopting a Design for Development Prohibiting the Construction of Pole Sign and 
Billboard Structures and Providing Standards for other Sign Structures in the Mid-City Recovery 
Redevelopment Project Area (“Resolution”)” (Attachment C) was adopted on February 21, 2002 
by the CRA/LA Board of Commissioners under provisions of the Plan.  These signage 
standards provide size regulations for signage and allow for minor variations to the signage 
guidelines after review by the Project Area Committee (PAC) and approval by the CRA/LA 
Board of Commissioners. 
 
The requested actions relate to the size limitation of the signage.  The five (5) signs that exceed 
100 square feet are being proposed by the developer as on-site signs.  These signs range in 
size from 264 square feet to 900 square feet.  It should be noted that the developer has filed an 

6 



4550 WEST PICO BOULEVARD              PAGE 2 
 
application with the City Planning Department for a Sign Supplemental Use District to allow for 
ten off-site advertising signs.  Those off-site signs are not part of this minor variation request.  
Should the off-site advertising request move forward with the City, the applicant would be 
required to seek CRA/LA approval because of their proposed sizes being in excess of 100 
square feet.  
 
The retail development is currently under construction, and is scheduled to open in November 
2011 to meet the lease agreement terms of its anchor tenant, Lowe’s Home Improvement 
Center.   
 
 

 
PREVIOUS ACTIONS   

May 15, 2008-CRA/LA approval of a First Amendment to OPA with CIM/Pico, LP  
 
March 4, 2004-CRA/LA approval of an OPA with CIM/Pico, LP  
 
February 21, 2002-CRA/LA adopted Resolution No. 6032 Providing Standards for Sign 
Structures in the Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Project Area 
 
 

 
DISCUSSION & BACKGROUND 

The subject property is located at 4550 West Pico Boulevard on the southeast corner of Pico 
and San Vicente Boulevards.  The southern boundary of the development is Venice Boulevard.  
The property is commercially zoned and designated in the Plan.  The development is located on 
11.3 acres and at 383,000 square feet and three levels will be the largest and tallest retail 
structure in the Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”). Adjacent 
commercial structures on Pico Boulevard to the north and San Vicente Boulevard to the west 
are commercial and one and two stories in height.  The residential structures to the south 
across Venice Boulevard on a bluff are one and two stories in height.  Immediately adjacent to 
the east are two story multi-family residential and commercial buildings.  None of the five 
proposed signs are digital or electronic.  The proposed five signs are to be attached to metal 
frames designed within the building.  Illumination for the signage meets the City standard 
requiring non-interference with adjacent properties.    
 
The signage Resolution allows for a maximum of 100 square feet per sign.  However, paragraph 
19, page 6, states that, “The Agency may permit, after review and recommendation of the 
Project Area Committee of the Project Area, if any, minor variations to these design standards… 
Section 518, “Minor Variation”, of the Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Plan states, “The 
Agency is authorized to permit a variation from the limits, restrictions and controls established 
by this Plan.  In order to permit such variation, the Agency must determine that: 
 

1. The application of certain provisions of this Plan would result in practical difficulties 
or unnecessary hardships which would make development inconsistent with the 
general purpose and intent of this Plan; or 
 

2. There are exceptional circumstances or conditions applicable to the property or to 
the intended development of the property which do not apply generally to other 
properties having the same standards, restrictions and controls; and 
 

3. Permitting a variation will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or 
injurious to property or improvements in the area or contrary to the objectives of 
this Plan or the applicable Community Plan.” 
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Based on the findings below, staff recommends that the CRA/LA Board of Commissioners 
approve a Minor Variation, to allow five (5) signs ranging in size from 264 square feet to 900 
square feet, in lieu of the normally required 100 square foot maximum: 
 
Exceptional Circumstances

 

:  The subject property will be the largest and tallest retail building in 
the Project Area.  It is being developed under an OPA with the CRA/LA that imposes numerous 
conditions intended to result in an integrated project that by both design and use substantially 
improves the redevelopment project area.  The building’s height and size are exceptional for the 
Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Project Area.  While the 100 square foot maximum size for 
individual signs may be appropriate for the typical one- and two-story commercial building in the 
Project Area, it would result in signs inappropriately scaled for the size of this particular 
structure.   For reasons of appropriate scale and context, larger-than-typical on-site signage on 
a larger-than-typical retail building is justifiable.  

1.  Sign A1 is a 264 square foot “Lowe’s” identification sign.  It is the sole Pico Boulevard 
store location signage for the anchor tenant.  The exceptional conditions of this property 
are its size (11.3 acre site and 383,000 square foot building size).  These exceptional 
size conditions do not generally apply to the typical Project Area one and two story, 
twenty-five and fifty foot wide storefront commercial development.  For reasons of 
appropriate scale and context, the exception for this proposed sign’s size is justified. 

 
2. Signs A10, A11, A13 and A15 are 560 square feet, 840 square feet, 240 square feet and 

900 square feet respectively.  These four signs are all attached to the three level parking 
structure.  The exceptional size and height conditions do not generally apply to the 
typical Project Area one and two story, twenty-five and fifty foot wide storefront 
commercial development[.  For reasons of appropriate scale and context, these sign 
sizes are justifiable. 

 
Not be Materially Detrimental to the Public Welfare

 

:  [In accordance with the court’s opinion in 
Desert Outdoor Advertising, Inc., v. City of Oakland, 506 F.3d 798 (2007), this finding no longer 
applies to sign entitlements].     

The Mid-City Recovery Redevelopment Area PAC recommended approval of this Minor 
Variation request at their August 23, 2011 meeting. 
  
 

 
ECONOMIC IMPACT 

There is negligible economic impact from this action. 
 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 

No CRA/LA funds are required for this action. 
 
 

 
PROGRAM AND BUDGET IMPACT 

There is no impact on the City’s General Fund as a result of this action.  The development is 
included in the FY12 budget and work program under Objective MD2020. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW   

The recommended action is categorically exempt from provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Section 15311 (a) (Accessory Structures/On-
premise signs). 
  
 
 
Christine Essel  
Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
By: 
 
 
 
        
Dalila Sotelo 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer  
 
 
  
There is no conflict of interest known to me which exists with regard to any CRA/LA officer or 
employee concerning this action. 

 
 
:  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A:   Location/Site Map 
Attachment B:   Signage Plans  
Attachment C: Resolution 
Attachment D: Project Summary 
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